
Seq. 
Number

Reference Tender Queries Reply to Queries

1

Plans & Drawings (Contract Package II Service Electrical Lay out)   Set No.E- 03/09 Sheet No. 57/63                                 Reference to Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 8.02.07)  the Genarator set specify 1-set only, 
however in drawing shown 2-set. Please to confirm the qty of the Generator set & load 
capacity.                                                          

Quantity of Generator Set is 1 set only. BOQ shall govern.

2

Plans & Drawings (LCP-PN1 PANEL DETAILS)   Set No.E -07/09 Sheet No. 61/63                                 Reference to Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 8.02.01) Please to confirm &  verify for 2-Spare 
CKT (PN.11 & PN.12) are not included in the total no. of Branches at Lighting Control Panel 
supposed is included  22 (BRS. 22-30AT/ 50AF, 3 PSN, MCCB )                            

Refer to BOQ. 

3

Technical Specification Part I-16                             Reference to Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 8.02.3.2)  specify 264 W LED FLOODLIGHT, 
however in Technical Specification shown is 2634 W Please to confirm the capacity.                                      

Typographical error on Technical Specification. BOQ shall 
govern. Specification is 264W LED Floodlights.

4

Plans & Drawings (HIGH MAST POLE DETAILS)   Set No.E -06/09 Sheet No. 60/63   In Reference with  Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 8.02.3.2) Please to confirm qty of LED 
FLOOD LIGHT

Refer to BOQ.

5

Technical Specification Part I-47                            As per  Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 8.01.3) for Cast Iron Pipe,is not shown in Technical 
Specification. Please to verify.                          

Refer to BOQ. 

6

Bill of Quantities As per  Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 8.01.3) Bill No. 7.01 & 8.01.24, Please to Provide Annex D 
(Additional Reference) 

Annex D will be provided.

7

BOQ Item 2.01 BOQ Item 2.01，Supply and delivery of steel pipe piles (900mmØ x 13mm thk x 21m A252 Grade 2) 
including interlock connectors.May I know what is the interlock length? What is the material grade 
required for the interlock? 

Interlock will be the same with the length of the steel pile 
pipes. For material garde, refer to the Annex A Technical 
Specification for material grade. 

8

protective coating Do we need protective coating on the interlock and what is the coating thickness requirement? Yes. Refer to Annex A Technical Specification for coating 
thickness requirements. 

9

Steel pipe pile OD900mm The material grade for Steel pipe pile OD900mm is A252 Grade 2, kindly confirm. Yes. 

10

protective coating The protective coating required is polyurethane to total DFT 1500 microns. Do you accept proposal of 
different coating system such as High Build Epoxy or GlassFlake Epoxy coating?

For bidding purposes no. 

11

BOQ Item 2.04 BOQ Item 2.04 Provision for coring, what's the proposal of this coring? For pile plug concrete? Refer to Annex A Technical Specification. 

12

BOQ Item 3.05, 4.05, 5.05,6.04 splicing of SPP BOQ Item 3.05, 4.05, 5.05,6.04 splicing of SPP, do you consider thess splicing work above water or 
on land?

Refer to Annex A Technical Specification. 

13

BOQ Item 7.01 & 8.01.24 Port Drainage System sewerage line see Annex D BOQ Item 7.01 & 8.01.24 Port Drainage System sewerage line see Annex D, could you provide 
document Annex D?

Annex D will be provided.

14

BOQ Item 8.02.15.3 cable 300mm dia BOQ Item 8.02.15.3 cable 300mm dia, could you provide more information? Refer to Service Electrical Layout Annex C Shop Drawings. 

15

Do the Draninage system, water lines, electrical works include demoliton work and re-built work? 
Could you indicate the construction location for these facility work, the drawings show the most of 
location are in yard area and out of proposed jetty area?

Refer to Annex C Shop drawing and Annex D which will 
provided. 

16

GI information for the pile driving are Could you provide more GI information for the pile driving area, such as the sandstone strength. Refer to Annex A Technical Specification. 

17

BOQ and drawings Base on the BOQ and drawings, we find that the total pile lengths (PHASE II TRAPEZOIDAL MAIN 
WHARF, PHASE III BLOCK 1 & 2) in BOQ are much more then the quantities in the drawings, please 
confirm whether we will following the BOQ for the tendering.

Yes.
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18

GENERAL Please clarify  the start date of  project. Upon receipt of Notice to Proceed.

19

GENERAL Please clarify what kinds of permits will be needded to submit during the construction phase of 
the project.

LGU Permit.

20

GENERAL Please clarify the priority of phases II mariginal pier & Phase II main wharf & phase Ⅲ block I 
& phase III block II? Whether these  parts have a detail deadline?

Contractor shall submit Construction Schedule with S-Curve 
subject for PNOC approval prior to commencement of work. 
Since ESB plans to continue pier operations while 
construction is ongoing, contractor shall consider the 
following schedule: 1. Construction of Phase II Marginal 
Pier (10 Months). 2. Construction of Main Wharf (14 
months).

21

GENERAL If here have a conflict between the  Phase I wharf and Phase II mariginal waharf during 
construction,it's mean did they will construct at simultaneously.

The triangular pier shall still be operational during 
construction of marginal wharf. And upon completion of 
marginal wharf, construction of main wharf shall commence 
and marginal wharf shall be operational or vice versa. 

22

GENERAL Can the contractor use PNOC's triangular wharf which is behind of the Phase III block II wharf 
during the construction phase of the project? It's free or not, if not ,what is the charge 
standard?

A laydown area shall be designated to the Contractor. They 
shall refer to Annex D. If contractor plans to utilize the 
triangular pier for unloading operations of Construction 
Materials they shall follow ESB Operations Guidelines and 
PPA Guidelines for berthing of local and foreign vessel. 
Vessel and other charges shall also apply. 

23

GENERAL As per the discussion on the meeting when CHEC visit the site,  it was mentioned that two 
offices could be provided to the contractor, but just for rent, CHEC want to know what is the 
charge standard.

Php285.00 per square meters plus 12% VAT. Total office 
area available as of April 30, 2023 is 2 office unit with area 
of  34.5 sqauare meters each.

24

GENERAL Which road in the internal area can be used for construction equipment  traveling during the 
construction period ? Did  PNOC have a traveling route layout for construction equipment?

Please refer to Annex C Shop Drawings for road network of 
ESB. The Contractor shall utilize the existing road network 
of ESB for travelling of equipment during construction 
period.

25

GENERAL Does here have any specfic requirement of construction noise and waste? did here have any 
specfic area for stock construction waste(such as concrete waste )? The construciton site is 
near the residential area, did here have specfic requirement or limit for construction period 
everyday? If the contractor complained by surrounding residents (the piling area is close to the 
residential area) during normal working time, can OPNC provide assistance to solve the 
problem?

Scrap materials and construction debris will be stock at 
PNOC designated area inside the ESB. However, residual 
waste of the Contractor shall be cared of the Contractor. 
The Contractor can construct 24/7 with proper coordination 
with the nearby Barangays. PNOC will be able to assist 
Contactor in coordinating with the Barangays. 

26

GENERAL Did employer have any other HSE requirements for this project, if have, please provide it. Please refer to DOLE Department Order 198-18 and the 
Prohibited Acts and Penalties at PNOC ESB in Annex D. 

27

GENERAL Cathodic protection and design life are not mentioned in the design drawing and specification, 
please confirm it is needded or not.

Care of Consultant. To be verified prior to start of 
construction subject for approval of PNOC. 

28

section VI
vii. project execution requirements
A. general conditions
clause 3

P37 of the bidding documents. How much is the performance and guarantee bonds? Refer to 2016 revised IRR of RA 9184.

29

Section IV GCC clause 5 
Section 39. of the 2016 revised IRR

It means that the Performance Security contains no less than 10% of the total contract price. 
Please specify the proportion of performance security.

Refer to 2016 revised IRR of RA 9184.

30

The advance payment shall not exceed 15% of the contract amount. Please specify the 
proportion of advance payment.

Refer to 2016 revised IRR of RA 9184.

31

The measurement period, payment period and payment proportion of progress payment shall 
be specified for progress payment, and supporting documents required for measurement shall 
be specified.
Please clarify how long the progress payments will be cetified after submission and made after 
certification? 
Please clarify what documents are required  in submitting the progress payments? 

Upon completeness of documents, Treasury wil issue 
check. Refer to revised IRR of RA 9184.

32

Is the material not be included for payment after acceptance and delivery? Need to wait for 
finish the construction or not? If not, what is the proportion.

Refer to BOQ. 

33

The bidding documents do not specify the fine regulations for delay of construction period.
Is there any delay penalty if the project can not be deliveried on time? If yes, what is the 
percentage and the maximum percentage?  
Is there any bonus if the project is deliveried in advance? If yes, what is the percentage and 
the maximum percentage?  

Yes. Refer to 2016 revised IRR of RA 9184.

34

Please  specify what situations the Contractor is entitle for extension of time for completion A documented Construction Management and PNOC 
approved at no fault to the contractor except work stoppage 
related to non-compliance to HSSE policies.  
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35

Please provide documents such as the ESB Operations Guidelines (Annex D Additional 
References) mentioned in the PROJECT EXECUTION REQUIREMENTS on page 37 of the 
bidding document

Annex D will be provided.

36

Item 1.02 of boq Table for construction safety and health, whether it means the production 
safety cost of the whole project construction, the cost will be measured and paid separately 
and will not be included in the comprehensive unit price.

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications Part B. 

37

In item 9.01 of boq table, Need to provide specific drawings and detailed quantitie, the bidding 
document said CON can reuse the materials after the existing marginal wharf demolition, if the 
materail quality cannot meet the requirment of project, can contractor still ues it?

No. Refer to Technical Specifications regarding backfilling 
materials. 

38

For example, the unit of measurement in item 2.01a of F-8 in the technical specification is kg, 
while the unit of measurement in boq table is lm. Whether technical specifications are 
preferred in the order of documents in the bidding documents. If the technical specification is 
preferred, please re-define the quantity.

Refer to the BOQ. 

39

The project duration only includes 30 non-working days. Does it include all non-working days 
such as typhoons, earthquakes and legal holidays?

Unworkable days are when contractor will not be able to 
work due to weather condition on site. Contract duration is 
in calendar days meaning legal holidays is included in the 
720 calendar days. 

40

According to the geological data of BH05-BH12 part of the geological standard penetration hit 
more than 80, is the design of steel pipe pile suitable? 

Yes. 

41

Detail of tie rod and typical section of steel sheet pile  CW-07-34 The clogged materials at the bottom of the pile did not specify the construction materials， Care of Consultant. To be verified prior to start of 
construction subject for approval of PNOC. 

42

 CW04 CW05 CW04 and CW05 PILE shows DRIVING DIRECTION different, which one should be 
suggested? Can the contractor decide on their own about the pile  driving direction and 
sequence?

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications.

43

 CW04. What are the elevations of the steel tie rods and anchor walls at the front and side of the 
dock? If the elevation is consistent, the steel tie rods may fight.

Refer to Annex C Shop drawing for details of tie rod and 
anchor walls. 
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44

CW04,CW06. There are no detailed drawings in the red box part of the CW04. Based on the CW06 , there is 
a TEE-HEAD ON THE FENDER BLOCKS.  However, BOQ missed the bollard here, please 
clarify.

No, its in the BOQ. 

45

CW05, Can CON. assume that WALE SPLICE is only required here, as it is only marked here? If not, 
please indicate when WALE SPLICE should be used.

Wale splice shall be installed as required. 

46

DETAIL OF CONCRETE BLOCK CW-08-38 Please provide the number of each type of square for PHASE II Volume of concrete blocks already indicated in BOQ. 

47

CW09 shows 3 kinds of shear key.Where are they applied separately? Depends on the legth of shear key.

48

CW21. Regarding phase II main wharf and phase III, the plates  structure  is not shown in the 
drawings only show some beams and wall, and there is no plates item show in the BOQ also . 
Can CON.  consider  that there is no need for plates in  phase II main wharf and phase III ?

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications. 

49

CONTRACT PACKAGE IISERVICE ELECTRICAL LAYOUT  E-03-09                                                    
CONTRACT PACKAGE II GENERAL ELECTRICAL LAYOUT  E-04-19

Please clarify the scope of responsibility for the demolition of other pipelines during the 
construction of mechanical and electrical engineering

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications. 

50
GENERAL Please provide detailed drawings of the drainage system Annex D will be provided.

51
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ITEM 400 What is the hammer stop standard Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications. 

52
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ITEM 400 Is it possible to splicy piles on site? Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications. 

53

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ITEM 400 Is it necessary to do PDA and vertical compressive static load tests, and if so, in what 
quantities?

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications. Also contractor 
shall submit Inspection and Test Plan subject for approval 
of and PNOC prior to commencement of work. 
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54

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ITEM 400 What should be done if the pile displacement exceeds 10cm? Did here have any requirement 
for the inclination of piles.

Refer to  Annex A Technical Specifications.

55

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ITEM 400 The requirement for a test pile is not seen, can the contractor assume that there is no need 
for a test pile?

Refer to Annnex A Technical Specifications.

56

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ITEM 101.2.4 & ITEM806.1 According to the specifications, can it be considered that both concrete blocks after break into 
pieces and stones  can be reused for filling.

It can be reused for filling if the said concrete blocks are 
acceptable per requirement indicated in the Technical 
Specifications. 

57

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ITEM 311.3.2 Do all concrete formwork require steel formwork? Can wooden molds be used for small 
components?

Annex A Technical Specifications shall be followed. 

58

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ITEM 715.2 Table 1 not provided in Speification, is it Table 1 for DPWH ITEM 715? Yes. 

59

Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 8.01.19) As per  Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 8.01.19)，Only 100 diameter information，please provide 
detailed information.

Stand Pipe Hydrant with Water Meter, Commercial 
Type,(100mmØ)

60

Section VI. SpecificationsIII. EQUIPMENT REQUIREMENTS Can the contractor configure equipment according to their own equipment without following 
the requirements of the equipment list while meeting construction needs.

The listed are minimum equipment requirements. The 
Contractor shall comply the minimum equipment 
requirements. 

61 GENERAL
Can you please provide the information of existing piles used at PNOC's triangular wharf and 
phase IV wharf ,including length and diameter etc.?Because the geological conditions here 
are similar to the area to be constructed.

No.Goetechnical study already conducted by Consultant. 
The Contractor shall verify actual condition on site prior to 
commencement of work. 

62
Can the contractor design the structure of the wharf in the form of prefabricated slab 
+LONGITUDINAL BEAM, TRANSVERSE BEAM cast-in-place

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications. 

63 GENERAL What about the settlement and displacement of the wharf

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications.

PREPARED BY: CHEC Construction (Phils.) Corp.



Seq. 
Number

Reference Tender Queries Reply to Queries

1 GENERAL
Can the phases II marginal wharf be used by contractors during 
construction?

The Contractor shall refer to Annex D for the 
designated Lay down Area for the Contractor. 
However, after completion of construction of Phase II 
Marginal Wharf, the marginal will be operational while 
Triangular Pier will be closed for construction of main 
wharf. 

2 GENERAL
Are there  oil storage tanks which can be used  to refuel by 
contractors on site ? If yes ,what is the standard of charge?

None. 

3 GENERAL
For some components, the contractor need to design 
shopdrawing, how much authority does the contractor have to 
design shopdrawing?

All shop drawings to be submitted by the Contractor 
shall be subject for approval of the PNOC. 

4

CW21.

Can the contractor use the  prefabricated panel& cast-in-place 
beam method scheme?

The Contractor shall refer to Annex A Technical 
Specification. 

5

CW21. The bar spaced of longitudinal and transverse beam  is too dense, 
can the contractor adjust the bar spaced while unchanging the 
quantity ?

Yes. The Contractor shall submit methodology 
statement subject for approval of PNOC prior to 
commence of work. 

6 TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS ITEM 404 – REINFORCING STEEL Can steel bars be welded?

Refer to standards cited in item 404. 

7

Plans & Drawings (Key Plan)   Set No.CW 05/34 Sheet No. 19/63                                 In Reference with  Bill of Quantities (Bill No. 2, 2.06 - 
Phase II Marginal Area)  Please to provide detailed drawing 
& specification of steel walling.                                                          

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications and Annex C 
Approved Shop drawings. 

8

Plans & Drawings In Reference with  Bill of Quantities (Bill No.2.2.22 & & 
2.23 - Phase II Marginal Area) Please clarify the same 
description & quantities.

Item 2.22 is Supply and Delivery. Item 2.23 is 
Installation. 

9

Plans & Drawings reference Set no. CW.04/31, 18/63 & Sheet no. 
CW.06/34, 20/63         

In Reference with  Bill of Quantities (Bill No.2 - Phase II 
Marginal Area) Roro Wing Wall & Roro Ramp are not 
included to BOQ

Items were included in Bill No. 2 Phase II Marginal 
Area. 

10

In Reference with  Bill of Quantities: Please clarify 
formworks are included tne reinforced concrete 
structures?

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications. 

11
Please confirm no testing requirement for SPP, such as static 
load test, PDA test.

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications. 

12
Please confirm whether the sand and gravel fill for Marginal 
Area need ground improvement.

Refer to Annex A Technical Specifications. 

13

Could you kindly provide the safety level of 50-100kg 
rock,sand and gravel backfilling for Marginal area without tie 
rod installation?

Contractor shall submit construction methodology and 
safety program subject for approval of PNOC prior to 
commencement or work. 

PREPARED BY: CHEC Construction (Phils.) Corp.
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